
B S R & Co. LLP 
                         Chartered Accountants 

  
                                                        Building No. 10, 12th Floor, Tower-C, 
                                                        DLF Cyber City, Phase-II, 
                                                        Gurugram – 122 002, India 

 

Telephone: +91 124 719 1000 

 Fax: +91 124 235 8613 

 

B S R & Co. (a partnership firm with Registration No. BA61223) converted into B S R & Co. LLP  

(a Limited Liability Partnership with LLP Registration No. AAB-8181) with effect from October 14, 2013 

 

Registered Office: 

14
th

 Floor, Central Wing, Tower 4, Nesco Center, 

Western Express Highway, Goregaon (East), Mumbai – 400063 

 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 

 

To the Members of Fortis Health Management (East) Limited  

 

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 

 

Opinion 

We have audited the financial statements of Fortis Health Management (East) Limited (“the Company”), 

which comprise the balance sheet as at 31 March 2021, the statement of profit and loss (including other 

comprehensive income), statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, 

and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of the significant accounting policies and 

other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the financial statements”). 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid 

financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) in the manner so 

required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in 

India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2021, loss, other comprehensive income, changes 

in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date. 

Basis for Opinion 

 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) 

of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the 

Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in 

accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with 

the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements under the 

provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in 

accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have 

obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the Standalone financial statements. 

 

Emphasis of matter 

 

We draw attention to Note 31 of the financial statements which deals with various matters including the 

ongoing investigation by Serious Fraud Investigation Office (“SFIO”) on Fortis Healthcare Limited (“FHL” 

or the “Intermediate Parent Company”) and its subsidiaries (“the Fortis Group”) regarding alleged improper 

transactions and non-compliances with laws and regulations including Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI laws 

and regulations. These transactions and non-compliances relate to or originated prior to take over of control 

of Intermediate Parent Company by its reconstituted board of directors in the year ended 31 March 2018. As 

mentioned in the note, the Group has been submitting information required by SFIO and is also cooperating 

in the regulatory investigations. 

 

As explained in the said note, the Fortis Group had recorded significant adjustments/ provisions in its books 

of account during the year ended 31 March 2018. The Intermediate Parent Company has launched legal 

proceedings and has also filed a complaint with the Economic Offences Wing (‘EOW’) against erstwhile 

promoters and their related entities based on the findings of the investigation conducted by the Fortis Group. 

Further, based on management’s detailed analysis and consultation with external legal counsel, a further 

provision has been made by the Intermediate Parent Company and recognised in the current year for any 
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contingency that may arise from the aforesaid issues on Fortis Group. As per the management, any further 

additional impact, to the extent it can be reliably estimated as at present, is not expected to be material. 

 

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter. 

Other Information 

 

The Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other 

information comprises the information included in the Company’s Board of Directors report, but does not 

include the financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon. 

 

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form 

of assurance conclusion thereon. 

 

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information 

and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial 

statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based 

on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, 

we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 

Management's and Board of Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial Statements  

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) 

of the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the 

state of affairs, profit/loss and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company 

in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting 

Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of 

adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of 

the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application 

of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and 

design, implementation and maintenance of adequate  internal  financial  controls that were operating 

effectively for ensuring accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and 

presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, 

whether due to fraud or error. 

 

In preparing the financial statements, the Management and Board of Directors are responsible for assessing 

the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going 

concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to 

liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

 

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process. 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free 

from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our 

opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in 

accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from 

fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be 

expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.  
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As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional 

skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 

error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is 

sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material 

misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve 

collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.  

 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that 

are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for 

expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to 

financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls. 

 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates 

and related disclosures in the financial statements made by the Management and Board of Directors. 

 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management and Board of Directors use of the going concern basis 

of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to 

events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going 

concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s 

report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify 

our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s 

report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going 

concern. 

 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the 

disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a 

manner that achieves fair presentation. 

 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and 

timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control 

that we identify during our audit. 

 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 

requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that 

may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 
 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

 

1. As required by the Companies (Auditors’ Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central 

Government  in terms of section 143 (11) of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A” a statement on 

the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order. 

 

2. (A) As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that: 

 

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our 

knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit. 

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far 

as it appears from our examination of those books. 
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c) The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), the 

statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report are in 

agreement with the books of account. 

 

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified 

under Section 133 of the Act.  

 

e) The matter described in the ‘Emphasis of Matter' paragraph above, in our opinion, may have an 

adverse effect on the functioning of the Company. 

 

f) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2021 taken 

on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2021 from 

being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act. 

 

g) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements 

of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in 

“Annexure B”. 

 

(B) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors’ Report in accordance with Rule 

11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our 

information and according to the explanations given to us: 

 

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position; 

 

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which 

there were any material foreseeable losses; 

 

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and 

Protection Fund by the Company; and 

 

iv. The disclosures in the financial statements regarding holdings as well as dealings in specified 

bank notes during the period from 8 November 2016 to 30 December 2016 have not been made 

in these financial statements since they do not pertain to the financial year ended 31 March 

2021. 
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(C) With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditors’ Report under section 197(16):  

According to the information and explanations given to us, no remuneration has been paid by the 

Company to any of its director during the current year. Accordingly, the requirements stipulated 

by the provisions of Section 197(16) of the Act are not applicable to the Company. 

 

 For B S R & Co. LLP 

 Chartered Accountants 

 Firm's Registration No.: 101248W/W-100022 

  

  

  

 

 

 Rajesh Arora 

 Partner 

Place: Gurugram 

Date:  22 September 2021  

Membership No. 076124 

UDIN: 21076124AAAADP1891 
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the financial statements of Fortis Health 

Management (East) Limited for the year ended 31 March 2021 

 

(Referred to in paragraph (1) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ Section 

of our Audit Report of even date)   

(i)  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of 

the records of the Company, the Company does not have any fixed assets (Property, plant and 

equipment). Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(i) of the Order are not applicable. 

 

(ii)        According to the information and explanations given by the management and on the basis of our 

examination of the records of the Company, the Company does not hold any inventory. Accordingly, 

clause 3(ii) of the Order is not applicable.  

(iii)       According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of 

the records of the Company, the Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to 

companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained 

under Section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, paragraph 3(iii) of the Order is not 

applicable. 

  

(iv) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not given any loan, or 

provided any guarantee or security or made any investment as specified under Section 185 and 186 

of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, paragraph 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable. 

 

(v) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of 

the records of the Company, the Company has not accepted any deposits as mentioned in the 

directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of Section 73 to 76 or any other 

relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules framed there under. Accordingly, 

paragraph 3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

 

(vi) The Company does not have any revenue generating activities. Accordingly, paragraph 3(vi) of the 

Order is not applicable. 

 

(vii) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination 

of the records of the Company, amounts deducted/ accrued in the books of account in respect of 

undisputed statutory dues including Income tax, Goods and services tax (GST) and other material 

statutory dues have been regularly deposited with the appropriate authorities. 

 

We are informed that the operations of the Company during the year did not give rise to any liability 

on account of Provident fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Duty of excise, Sales tax, Value added 

tax, Duty of Customs, Cess and Service tax. 

 

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of 

the records of the Company, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Income-tax, Goods and 

services tax, and other material statutory dues were in arrears as at 31 March 2021 for a period of 

more than six months from the date they became payable. 
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(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues of Income-tax, Duty 

of customs, Duty of excise, Sales tax, Goods and service tax, Service tax and Value added tax which 

have not been deposited by the Company with appropriate authorities on account of any disputes as 

at 31 March 2021. 

 

(viii) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of 

the records of the Company, the Company does not have any loans or borrowings from any financial 

institution, banks, government or debenture holders during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3(viii) 

of the Order is not applicable.  

 

(ix) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of 

the records of the Company, the Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer 

or further public offer (including debt instruments) or term loans during the year. Accordingly, 

paragraph 3(ix) of the Order is not applicable.  

 

(x) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud 

by the Company or on the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during 

the year. 

 

(xi) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of 

the records of the Company, no managerial remuneration has been paid during the year. Hence, the 

provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V of the Act are not applicable to the Company. 

 

(xii) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of 

the records of the Company, the Company is not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of 

the Order is not applicable. 

 

(xiii) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of 

the records of the Company, transactions with related parties are in compliance with Section 188 of 

the Act, where applicable, and the details of such transactions have been disclosed in the financial 

statements as required by the applicable Accounting Standards. According to the information and 

explanations given to us, the provisions of Section 177 of the Act are not applicable to the Company. 

 

(xiv) Based on our examination of the books of account and according to the information and explanations 

given to us, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or 

fully or partly convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xiv) of the Order is 

not applicable. 

 

(xv) According to information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records 

of Company, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons 

connected with them. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable. 
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(xvi) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of 

the records of the Company, the Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of 

the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xvi) of the Order is not applicable. 
 

 

 

 For B S R & Co. LLP 

 Chartered Accountants 

 Firm's Registration No.: 101248W/W-100022 

  

  

  

  

 Rajesh Arora 

Place: Gurugram Partner 

Date:  22 September 2021  Membership No. 076124  

UDIN: 21076124AAAADP1891 
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s report on the financial statements of Fortis Health 

Mangement (East) Limited for the year ended 31 March 2021 

Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the aforesaid financial statements under 

Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013  

(Referred to in paragraph (2)(A)(g) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ 

section of our report of even date)  

Opinion  

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Fortis Health 

Mangement (East) Limited (“the Company”) as of 31 March 2021 in conjunction with our audit of the 

financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date. 

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference 

to financial statements and such internal financial controls were operating effectively as at 31 March 2021, 

based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria established by the 

Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of 

Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting  issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 

India (the “Guidance Note”). 

 

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls  

The Company’s management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and maintaining 

internal financial controls based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements 

criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the 

Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate 

internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its 

business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and 

detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely 

preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013 (hereinafter referred 

to as “the Act”). 

Auditor’s Responsibility  

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to 

financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and 

the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit 

of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements. Those Standards and the Guidance Note 

require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 

assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were 

established and maintained and whether such controls operated effectively in all material respects. 

 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial 

controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial 

controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of such internal financial 

controls, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating 

effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s 

judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether 

due to fraud or error. 

 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 

audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements. 
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Meaning of Internal Financial controls with Reference to Financial Statements  

A Company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to provide 

reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements 

for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A Company's internal 

financial controls with reference to financial statements include those policies and procedures that (1) pertain 

to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and 

dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as 

necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting 

principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with 

authorisations of management and directors of the Company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding 

prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company's assets that 

could have a material effect on the financial statements. 

 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial controls with Reference to Financial Statements 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, 

including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements 

due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal 

financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal 

financial controls with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in 

conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

 

 

 For B S R & Co. LLP 

 Chartered Accountants 

 Firm's Registration No.: 101248W/W-100022 

  

  

  

  

 Rajesh Arora 

Place: Gurugram Partner 

Date:  22 September 2021  Membership No. 076124  

UDIN: 21076124AAAADP1891 

 

 





As at As at


Particulars Notes 31 March 2021 31 March 2020


(Rupees in '000) (Rupees in '000)


ASSETS


A. Non-current assets


(a) Property, plant and equipment 4 -                                   -                                   


(b) Other Intangible assets 5 -                                   -                                   


(c) Non-current tax assets (Net) 6(ii) 3,095.74                          3,069.08                           


Total non-current assets (A) 3,095.74                          3,069.08                           


B. Current assets


(a) Financial assets


(i) Trade receivables 7 -                                   -                                   


(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 8 314.44                             1,685.89                           


Total current assets (B) 314.44                             1,685.89                           


Total assets (A+B) 3,410.18                          4,754.97                           


EQUITY AND LIABILITIES


A. Equity


(a) Equity share capital 9 500.00                             500.00                             


(b) Other equity 10                      (118,697.16)                       (110,503.12)


Total equity (A)                      (118,197.16)                       (110,003.12)


Liabilities


B. Non-current liabilities


(a) Financial Liabilities


(i) Borrowings 11                                      -                            95,197.02 


(ii) Other financial liabilities 12                                      -                            10,737.63 


Total non-current liabilities (B)                                      -                          105,934.65 


C. Current liabilities


(a) Financial liabilities


(i) Trade payables 13


Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small 


enterprises


-                                   52.72                               


Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro 


enterprises and small enterprises


6,255.14                          8,503.29                           


(ii) Other financial liabilities 12 115,122.36                      -                                   


(b) Other current liabilities 14 229.84                             267.43                             


Total current liabilities (C)                        121,607.34                            8,823.44 


Total liabilities (B+C)                        121,607.34                        114,758.09 


Total equity and liabilities (A+B+C) 3,410.18                          4,754.97                           
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In terms of our report attached.


For B S R & Co. LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors


Chartered Accountants FORTIS HEALTH MANAGEMENT (EAST) LIMITED


Firm Registration Number : 101248W/W-100022


Rajesh Arora Rajeev Kumar Dua Ranjan Bihari Pandey


Partner Director Director


Membership No: 076124 DIN 06974102 DIN 07752372


Place : Gurugram Place : Gurugram Place : Gurugram


Date : 22 September 2021 Date : 22 September 2021 Date : 22 September 2021


FORTIS HEALTH MANAGEMENT (EAST) LIMITED


BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31 MARCH 2021


See accompanying notes forming part of the financial statements







Year ended  Year ended 


Notes 31 March 2021 31 March 2020


(Rupees in '000) (Rupees in '000)


I Revenue from operations 15 2,089.21                      33,505.69                    


II Other income 16 -                              350.81                         


III Total income(I+II) 2,089.21                      33,856.50                    


IV Expenses


(i) Purchases of medical consumable and drugs -                              1,552.43                      


(ii) Changes in inventories of medical consumable and drugs 17 -                              836.70                         


(iii) Employee benefits expense 18 -                              3,950.65                      


(iv) Finance costs 19 9,377.37                      11,076.20                    


(v) Depreciation and amortisation expense 20 -                              486.84                         


(vi) Other expenses 21 905.88                         24,586.91                    


Total Expenses (IV) 10,283.25                    42,489.73                    


V Loss before tax (III-IV) (8,194.04)                     (8,633.23)                     


VI Tax expense 22


(i) Current tax -                              -                              


(ii) Deferred tax -                              -                              


Total tax expense (VI) -                              -                              


VII Loss for the year (V-VI) (8,194.04)                     (8,633.23)                     


VIII Other comprehensive income -                              -                              


IX Total comprehensive loss for the year (VII+VIII) (8,194.04)                     (8,633.23)                     


Earning per equity share : 28


(i) Basic (in Rupees) (163.88)                       (172.66)                       


(ii) Diluted (in Rupees) (163.88)                       (172.66)                       
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For B S R & Co. LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
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Rajesh Arora Rajeev Kumar Dua Ranjan Bihari Pandey


Partner Director Director


Membership No: 076124 DIN 06974102 DIN 07752372


Place : Gurugram Place : Gurugram Place : Gurugram


Date : 22 September 2021 Date : 22 September 2021 Date : 22 September 2021


FORTIS HEALTH MANAGEMENT (EAST) LIMITED


STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021


See accompanying notes forming part of the financial 


statements







 Year ended  Year ended


31 March 2021 31 March 2020


 (Rupees in '000)  (Rupees in '000) 


Cash flows from operating activities


 Loss for the year (8,194.04)                       (8,633.23)                                  


Adjustments for:


Allowance for doubtful receivables -                                 3,639.30                                   


Provision / liability no longer required written back (2,089.21)                       (11,027.75)                                


Finance cost 9,375.22                        10,957.05                                 


Depreciation and amortisation expense -                                 486.84                                      


Operating (Loss)/ Profit before changes in assets and liabilities (908.03)                          (4,577.79)                                  


Change in operating assets and liabilities


(Increase) in trade receivables -                                 (455.49)                                     


Decrease in inventories -                                 836.70                                      


Decrease in other financial assets -                                 6,738.76                                   


(Decrease) in trade payables (211.68)                          (11,731.46)                                


Increase in provisions -                                 -                                            


(Decrease) in financial liabilities -                                 (3,832.44)                                  


(Decrease) in other liabilities (37.59)                            (2,520.16)                                  


Cash (used in)/ generated by operations (1,157.30)                       (15,541.88)                                


 Income taxes refund/ (paid) (26.66)                            3,209.08                                   


(1,183.96)                       (12,332.80)                                


Receipt from sale of property, plant and equipment and Intangibles -                                 14,935.82                                 


Net cash generated by/ (used in) investing activities (B) -                                 14,935.82                                 


 Repayment of borrowings -                                 (20,000.00)                                


 Interest paid (187.49)                          (219.42)                                     


Net cash used in financing activities (C) (187.49)                          (20,219.42)                                


Net (decrease)/ increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) (1,371.45)                       (17,616.40)                                


Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 1,685.89                        19,302.29                                 


Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (refer note 8) 314.44                           1,685.89                                   


FORTIS HEALTH MANAGEMENT (EAST) LIMITED


 CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021


Net cash (used in)/ generated by operating activities (A)


Cash flows from investing activities


Cash flows from financing activities







 Year ended  Year ended


31 March 2021 31 March 2020


 (Rupees in '000)  (Rupees in '000) 


Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities


Particulars Borrowings  Interest accrued 


As at 1 April 2019 103,547.88                    11,649.14                                 


Repayment of borrowings (20,000.00)                     -                                            


Finance cost -                                 10,957.05                                 


Finance cost paid -                                 (219.42)                                     


Conversion of interest accrued to borrowing 11,649.14                      (11,649.14)                                


As at 31 March 2020 95,197.02                      10,737.63                                 


As at 1 April 2020 95,197.02                      10,737.63                                 


Finance cost -                                 9,375.22                                   


Finance cost paid -                                 (187.49)                                     


Conversion of interest accrued to borrowing 10,737.63                      (10,737.63)                                


As at 31 March 2021 105,934.65                    9,187.73                                   


The cash flow statement has been prepared in accordance with the 'Indirect method' as set out in the Ind AS 7 "Statement of Cash Flows"


See accompanying notes forming part of the financial statements 1 - 34


In terms of our report attached


For B S R & Co. LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors


Chartered Accountants FORTIS HEALTH MANAGEMENT (EAST) LIMITED


Firm Registration Number : 101248W/W-100022


Rajesh Arora Rajeev Kumar Dua Ranjan Bihari Pandey


Partner Director Director


Membership No: 076124 DIN 06974102 DIN 07752372


Place : Gurugram Place : Gurugram Place : Gurugram


Date : 22 September 2021 Date : 22 September 2021 Date : 22 September 2021


FORTIS HEALTH MANAGEMENT (EAST) LIMITED


 CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021







(Rupees in '000) 


Reserve and surplus


Retained earnings


As at 1 April 2019 500.00                              (101,869.89)                          (101,369.89)                        


(a) Loss for the year -                                    (8,633.23)                              (8,633.23)                             


(b) Other comprehensive income for the year, net of income tax -                                    -                                         -                                       


Total comprehensive loss for the year -                                    (8,633.23)                              (8,633.23)                             


Balance as at 31 March 2020 500.00                              (110,503.12)                          (110,003.12)                        


As at 1 April 2020 500.00                              (110,503.12)                          (110,003.12)                        


(a) Loss for the year -                                    (8,194.04)                              (8,194.04)                             


(b) Other comprehensive income for the year, net of income tax -                                    -                                         -                                       


Total comprehensive loss for the year -                                    (8,194.04)                              (8,194.04)                             


Balance as at 31 March 2021 500.00                              (118,697.16)                          (118,197.16)                        


See accompanying notes forming part of the financial 


statements


1 - 34


In terms of our report attached.


For B S R & Co. LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors


Chartered Accountants FORTIS HEALTH MANAGEMENT (EAST) LIMITED


Firm Registration Number : 101248W/W-100022


Rajesh Arora Rajeev Kumar Dua Ranjan Bihari Pandey


Partner Director Director


Membership No: 076124 DIN 06974102 DIN 07752372


Place : Gurugram Place : Gurugram Place : Gurugram


Date : 22 September 2021 Date : 22 September 2021 Date : 22 September 2021


FORTIS HEALTH MANAGEMENT (EAST) LIMITED


 STATEMENT OF CHANGE IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH  2021


Equity share capital
Particular


Total
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Note 1. Corporate Information  
 


Fortis Health Management (East) Limited (‘the Company’ or ‘FHM(E)L’) was incorporated on April 13, 2011 


to carry on the business of promotion, maintenance, management, operation and conduct of healthcare and 


related services and providing consultancy for establishment of healthcare services. FHM(E)L is a 100% 


subsidiary of Fortis Hospitals Limited.  


 


The registered office of the company is located at Escorts Heart Institute and Research Centre, Okhla Road, 


New Delhi- 110025. 


 


Note 2. Significant accounting policies 


 


This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial 


statements. The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year. 


 


(a) Basis of preparation 


 


(i) Statement of compliance 


 


These Ind AS Financial Statements (“financial statements”) have been prepared in accordance with Indian 


Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 notified under 


Section 133 of Companies Act, 2013, (“the Act”) and other relevant provisions of the Act. All the amounts 


included in the financial statements are reported in thousands of Indian Rupees (‘INR’) and are rounded to the 


off to two decimals, except per share data and unless stated otherwise. 


 


The financial statements have been authorized for issue by the Company’s Board of Directors on September 22, 


2021. 


   


(ii) Functional and presentation currency 


 


These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees, which is also the Company’s functional currency. 


 


(iii) Historical cost convention 


 


The financial statements have been prepared under historical cost convention on accrual basis, unless otherwise 


stated.  Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly 


transaction between market participants at the measurement date. 


 


(iv) Going Concern 


These financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis based on letter of support received from Fortis 


Healthcare Limited, the intermediate holding company. Also refer note 33. 
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(b) Current versus non-current classification 


 


The Company presents assets and liabilities in the Balance Sheet based on current/ non-current classification.  


An asset is treated as current when:  


 It is expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle; 


 It is held primarily for the purpose of trading; 


 It is expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period; or 


 It is cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at 


least twelve months after the reporting period. 


 


The Company classifies all other assets as non-current.  


A liability is current when: 


 It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle; 


 It is held primarily for the purpose of trading; 


 It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or 


 There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after 


the reporting period. 


 


The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current. 


 


Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities respectively. 


 


The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and 


cash equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle for the purpose of current-


non-current classification of assets and liabilities. 


 


(c)     Measurement of fair values 


 


A number of the accounting policies and disclosures require measurement of fair values, for both financial and 


non-financial assets and liabilities. Fair values are categorized into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based 


on the inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows: 


 


Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. 


Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either 


directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices). 


Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs). 


 


The Company has an established control framework with respect to the measurement of fair values. This includes 


a finance team that has overall responsibility for overseeing all significant fair value measurements, including 


Level 3 fair values. 


 


When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses observable market data as far as 


possible. If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the fair 


value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety in the same level of the fair value 


hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement.  The Company recognises 


transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting period during which the change has 


occurred. 
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(d) Property, plant and equipment (PPE) and intangible assets 


 


(i) Property, plant and equipment 


 


Items of property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, which includes capitalized finance costs, less 


accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment loss. The cost of an item of property, plant 


and equipment comprises its purchase price, including import duties and other non-refundable taxes or 


levies, freight, any directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended 


use and estimated cost of dismantling and restoring onsite; any trade discounts and rebates are deducted 


in arriving at the purchase price. 


 


Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as 


appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to 


the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component 


accounted for as a separate asset is derecognized when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are 


charged to profit or loss during the reporting period in which they are incurred.    


 


Advances paid towards acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding at each Balance Sheet 


date, are shown under other non-current assets and cost of assets not ready for intended use before the 


year end, are shown as capital work-in-progress. 


 


(ii) Intangible assets 


 


 Internally generated goodwill is not recognised as an asset. With regard to other internally generated 


intangible assets: 


 


- Expenditure on research activities, undertaken with the prospect of gaining new scientific or 


technical knowledge and understanding, is recognised in the statement of profit and loss as incurred. 


 


- Development expenditure including regulatory cost and legal expenses leading to product 


registration/ market authorisation relating to the new and/or improved product and/or process 


development capitalised only if development costs can be measured reliably, the product or process 


is technically and commercially feasible, future economic benefits are probable, and the Company 


intends to and has sufficient resources to complete development and to use the asset. The 


expenditure capitalised includes the cost of materials, direct labour, overhead costs that are directly 


attributable to preparing the asset for its intended use, and directly attributable finance costs (in the 


same manner as in the case of tangible fixed assets). Other development expenditure is recognised 


in the Statement of Profit and Loss as incurred.  


 


 Intangible assets that are acquired (including goodwill recognized for business combinations) are 


measured initially at cost. After initial recognition, an intangible asset is carried at its cost less 


accumulated amortization (for finite lives intangible assets) and any accumulated impairment loss. 


Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits from the 


specific asset to which it relates. 


 


(iii) Depreciation and amortization methods, estimated useful lives and residual value 


 


Depreciation is provided on straight line basis on the original cost/ acquisition cost of assets or other amounts 


substituted for cost of property, plant and equipment as per the useful life specified in Part 'C' of Schedule II of 
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the Act, read with notification dated 29 August 2014 of the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, except for certain 


classes of property, plant and equipment which are depreciated based on the internal technical assessment of the 


management. The details of useful life are as under: 


 


Depreciation on leasehold assets is provided over the lease term or expected useful life of the asset, whichever is 


lower. 


 


Estimated useful lives of the intangible assets are as follows: 


 


  Category of assets  Management estimate of Useful Life 


Computer software 3-6 years 


 


Depreciation and amortization on property, plant and equipment and intangible assets added/ disposed off during 


the year has been provided on pro-rata basis with reference to the date of addition/ disposal. 


 


Depreciation and amortization methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at the end of each reporting 


period and adjusted if appropriate. 


 


(iv) Derecognition 


 


Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets are derecognised on disposal or when no future economic 


benefits are expected from their use and disposal. Losses arising from retirement and gains or losses arising from 


disposal of a tangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying 


amount of the asset and are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 


 


(e) Financial instrument 


 


A Financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability 


or equity instrument of another entity. 


 


Financial assets 


 


Initial recognition and measurement 


All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair 


value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. 


Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation 


or convention in the marketplace (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e. the date that the 


Company commits to purchase or sell the asset. 


 


  


Category of assets Management estimate of  


useful life 


Useful life as per  


Schedule II 


Plant and Machinery 3- 15 years 15 years 


Medical Equipment  2-13 years 13 years 


Computers 3 years 3 years 


Furniture and fixtures 10 years 10 years 


Office equipment 5 years 5 years 
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Subsequent measurement 


 


For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories: 


 Debt instruments at amortised cost 


 Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) 


 Debt instruments, derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) 


 Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) 


 


Debt instruments at amortised cost 


 


A ‘debt instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost if the asset is held within a business model whose objective 


is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows, and contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified 


dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding. 


 


After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective 


interest rate (EIR) method. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash 


payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument to the gross carrying amount of the 


financial asset or the amortised cost of the financial liability. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account 


any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR 


amortisation is included in other income in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The losses arising from impairment 


are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. This category generally applies to trade and other receivables. 


 


Debt instrument at FVOCI 


 


A ‘debt instrument’ is classified as at the FVOCI if the objective of the business model is achieved both by 


collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets, and  the asset’s contractual cash flows represent 


SPPI. 


 


Debt instruments included within the FVOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at 


fair value. Fair value movements are recognised in the other comprehensive income (OCI). On derecognition of 


the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified to the Statement of Profit and 


Loss. Interest earned whilst holding FVOCI debt instrument is reported as interest income using the EIR method. 


 


Debt instrument at FVTPL 


 


FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet the criteria for 


categorisation as at amortised cost or as FVOCI, is classified as at FVTPL. In addition, at initial recognition, the 


Company may irrevocably elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets amortised cost or FVOCI 


criteria, as at FVTPL. However, such election is allowed only if doing so reduces or eliminates a measurement 


or recognition inconsistency (referred to as ‘accounting mismatch’). 


Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognised in 


the Statement of Profit and Loss. 


 


Equity investments 


 


All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are held for 


trading and contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to which Ind AS 103 
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applies are classified as at FVTPL. For all other equity instruments, the Company may make an irrevocable 


election to present in other comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value. The Company makes 


such election on an instrument-by-instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is 


irrevocable. 


 


If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVOCI, then all fair value changes on the 


instrument, excluding dividends, are recognised in the OCI. There is no recycling of the amounts from OCI to 


the Statement of Profit and Loss, even on sale of investment. However, the Company may transfer the 


cumulative gain or loss to retained earnings. 


 


Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognised 


in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 


 


Impairment of financial assets 


 


The Company recognizes loss allowance using the expected credit loss (ECL) model for the financial assets 


which are not fair valued through profit or loss. Loss allowance for trade receivables with no significant 


financing component is measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECL. For all financial assets with contractual 


cash flows other than trade receivable, ECLs are measured at an amount equal to the 12-month ECL, unless 


there has been a significant increase in credit risk from initial recognition in which case those are measured at 


lifetime ECL. The amount of ECL (or reversal) that is required to adjust the loss allowance at the reporting date 


is recognised as an impairment gain or loss in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 


 


Derecognition of financial assets 


 


A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) 


is primarily derecognized (i.e., removed from the Company’s balance sheet) when: 


 


 The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or 


 The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an 


obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a 


‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks 


and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all 


the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset. 


 


When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-


through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When 


it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control 


of the asset, the Company continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the Company’s continuing 


involvement. In that case, the Company also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the 


associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained. 


 


Write-off of financial assets 


 


The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off when the Company has no reasonable expectations 


of recovering a financial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof. The Company expects no significant recovery 


from the amount written off. 
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Financial liabilities 


 


Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is classified as 


at FVTPL if it is classified as held‑for‑trading, or it is a derivative or it is designated as such on initial recognition. 


Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and losses, including any interest expense, 


are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss. Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised 


cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised 


in Statement of Profit and Loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is also recognised in Statement of Profit and 


Loss. 


 


Derecognition of financial liabilities 


 


A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. 


When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, 


or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the 


derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective 


carrying amounts is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 


 


Derivative financial instruments 


 


The Company uses various types of derivative financial instruments to hedge its currency and interest risk etc. 


Such derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative 


contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at fair value. Derivatives are carried as financial assets 


when the fair value is positive and as financial liabilities when the fair value is negative. 


 


Offsetting 


 


Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the Balance Sheet when, and 


only when, the Company currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and it intends either to 


settle them on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. 


 


(f) Cash and cash equivalents 


 


Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, demand deposits with banks and other short-term highly liquid 


investments with original maturities of three months or less. 


 


For the purpose of cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalent includes cash in hand, in banks, demand deposits 


with banks and other short-term highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less, net of 


outstanding bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and are considered part of the cash management 


system. 


 


(g) Contingent liabilities and contingent assets 


 


A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by 


the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Company or 


a present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required 


to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that 
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cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably. The Company does not recognize a contingent 


liability but discloses its existence in the financial statements unless the possibility of an outflow of resources 


embodying economic benefits is remote.  Contingent liabilities and commitments are reviewed by the 


management at each balance sheet date. 


 


Contingent assets are neither recognised nor disclosed in the financial statements. However, contingent assets 


are assessed continually and if it is virtually certain that an inflow of economic benefits will arise, the asset and 


related income are recognised in the period in which the change occurs. 


 


(h) Provisions 
 


A provision is recognized if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or constructive 


obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required 


to settle the obligation. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by 


discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time 


value of money and the risks specific to the liability. Where discounting is used, the increase in the provision 


due to the passage of time is recognized as a finance cost. 


 


The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present 


obligation at reporting date, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When 


some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third 


party, the receivable is recognized as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received, and 


the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably. 


 


A contract is considered to be onerous when the expected economic benefits to be derived by the Company from 


the contract are lower than the unavoidable cost of meeting its obligations under the contract. The provision for 


an onerous contract is measured at the present value of the lower of the expected cost of terminating the contract 


and the expected net cost of continuing with the contract. Before such a provision is made, the Company 


recognises any impairment loss on the assets associated with that contract. 


 


Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. If it is no 


longer probable that the outflow of resources would be required to settle the obligation, the provision is reversed 


 


(i) Revenue recognition 
 


Revenue primarily comprises fees charged under contract for inpatient and outpatient hospital services and also 


includes sale of medical and non-medical items. Hospital services include charges for accommodation, medical 


professional services, equipment, radiology, laboratory and pharmaceutical goods used in treatments given to 


Patients.  


 


Contracts with customers could include promises to transfer multiple services/ products to a customer.  The 


Company assesses the product/ services promised in a contract and identifies distinct performance obligation in 


the contract. Revenue for each distinct performance obligation is measured to at an amount that reflects the 


consideration which the Company expects to receive in exchange for those products or services and is net of tax 


collected from customers and remitted to government authorities such as sales tax, excise duty, value added tax 


and applicable discounts and allowances including claims. Further, the Company also determines whether the 


performance obligation is satisfied at a point in time or over a period of time. These judgments and estimations 


are based on various factors including contractual terms and historical experience. 


 


Revenue from hospital services is recognized as and when services are performed and from sale of products is 


recognised upon transfer of control of products to customers at the time of delivery of goods to the customers. 
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Revenue includes only those sales for which the Company has acted as a principal in the transaction, takes title 


to the products, and has the risks and rewards of ownership, including the risk of loss for collection, delivery 


and returns.  Any revenue transaction for which the Company has acted as an agent or broker without assuming 


the risks and rewards of ownership have been reported on a net basis.  


 


Excess of revenue earned over billings on contracts is recognised as unbilled revenue. Unbilled revenue is 


classified as other financial assets when there is unconditional right to receive cash, and only passage of time is 


required, as per contractual terms. Unearned and deferred revenue (“contract liability”) is recognised as other 


current liability when there is billings in excess of revenues.  


 


Other operating revenue comprises revenue from various ancillary revenue generating activities like 


commission income.   The revenue in respect of such arrangements is recognized as and when services are 


performed. 


 


(j) Finance costs 


 


Finance costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. 


Finance cost also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the finance costs. 


General and specific borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the construction or production or development 


of a qualifying asset are capitalized as part of the cost of that asset. Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily 


take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale. All other finance costs are expensed in 


the period in which they occur. 


 


Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on 


qualifying assets is deducted from the finance costs eligible for capitalization. Ancillary costs incurred in 


connection with the arrangement of borrowings are amortised over the period of such borrowings. 


 


(k) Income tax 


 


Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in Statement of profit and loss except to the 


extent that it relates to a business combination, or items recognised directly in equity or in OCI. 


 


Current taxes 


 


Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year and any 


adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The amount of current tax payable or 


receivable is the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received after considering uncertainty 


related to income taxes, if any. It is measured using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting 


date.  Current tax assets and liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off the 


recognised amounts, and it is intended to realise the asset and settle the liability on a net basis or simultaneously. 
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Deferred taxes 


 


Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and 


liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax is not 


recognised for:  


 


– temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that is not a 


business combination and that affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss at the time of the 


transaction;  


– temporary differences related to freehold land and investments in subsidiaries, associates or joint 


arrangements, to the extent that the Company is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary 


differences and it is probable that they will not reverse in the foreseeable future; and  


– taxable temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of goodwill. 


 


Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses, unused tax credits and deductible temporary differences 


to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they can be used. 


Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and recognised to the extent that it has 


become probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they can be used. Deferred tax is 


measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to the period when the asset is realised or the liability 


is settled, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date. The 


measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the 


Company expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.  


 


Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised 


amounts, and it is intended to realise the asset and settle the liability on a net basis or simultaneously.  


 


(l) Leases  


 


(i) As a lessee 


 


Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets 


 


The Company has elected not to recognise right-of use assets and lease liabilities for short term leases that have 


a lease term of 12 months or less and leases of low value assets. The Company recognises the lease payments 


associated with these leases as an expense on a straight- line basis over the lease term. 


 


(ii) As a lessor 


 


The Company accounts for assets given under lease arrangement in the following manner:  


 


Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are not transferred to the Company 


as lessee are classified as operating leases. Assets subject to operating leases are included in Property, Plant and 


Equipment. Rental income on operating lease is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss on a straight-line 


basis over the lease term.  


 


Costs, including depreciation, are recognized as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Initial direct costs 


incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased assets and 


recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term. 
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Leases are classified as finance leases when substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership transfer from 


the Company  to the lessee. Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recorded as receivables at the 


Company’s net investment in the leases. Finance lease income is allocated to accounting  periods so as to reflect 


a constant periodic rate of return on the net investment outstanding in respect of the lease. 


 


(m) Cash flow statement 


 


Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby net profit before tax is adjusted for the effects of 


transactions of a non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments. The 


cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated. The Company 


considers all highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash to be cash 


equivalents. 


 


(n) Segment reporting 


 


An operating segment is a component of the group that engages in business activities from which it may earn 


revenues and incur expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate to transactions with any of the 


Company’s other components, and for which discrete financial information is available. Operating segments are 


reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Chief Operating Decision Maker 


(“CODM”). Revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, which are common to the enterprise as a whole and are 


not allocable to segments on a reasonable basis, have been treated as "unallocated revenues/ expenses/ assets/ 


liabilities", as the case may be. 


 


The Company is primarily engaged in the business of healthcare services which is the only reportable segment. 


 


(o) Earnings per share 


 


(i) Basic earnings per share 


Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing: 


 the profit attributable to owners of the Company 


 by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the financial year, adjusted 


for bonus elements in equity shares issued during the year. 


 


(ii) Diluted earnings per share 


 


Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic earnings per share 


to take  into account: 


 the after income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive potential 


equity shares, and 


 the weighted average number of additional equity shares that would have been outstanding 


assuming the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares 


 


Note 3 (a).    Critical estimates and judgements 


 


The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions 


that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and 


expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.  
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Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates 


are recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods affected.  


 


Judgements 
 


Information about judgements made in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effects on the 


amounts recognized in the financial statements is included in the following notes: 


 


 Recognition and estimation of tax expense including deferred tax– Note 22 


 Assessment of going concern- Note 33 


 


Note 3 (b).    Applicable standards issued but not yet effective 


 


On March 24, 2021, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") through a notification, amended Schedule 


III of the Companies Act, 2013. The amendments revise Division I, II and III of Schedule III and are 


applicable from April 1, 2021. Key amendments relating to Division II which relate to companies whose 


financial statements are required to comply with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015 


are:  


 


Balance Sheet: 


 


 Lease liabilities should be separately disclosed under the head ‘financial liabilities’, duly 


distinguished as current or non-current.  


 Certain additional disclosures in the statement of changes in equity such as changes in equity share 


capital due to prior period errors and restated balances at the beginning of the current reporting 


period.  


 Specified format for disclosure of shareholding of promoters.  


 Specified format for ageing schedule of trade receivables, trade payables, capital work-in-progress 


and intangible asset under development.  


 If a company has not used funds for the specific purpose for which it was borrowed from banks 


and financial institutions, then disclosure of details of where it has been used.  


 Specific disclosure under ‘additional regulatory requirement’ such as compliance with approved 


schemes of arrangements, compliance with number of layers of companies, title deeds of 


immovable property not held in name of company, loans and advances to promoters, directors, key 


managerial personnel (KMP) and related parties, details of benami property held etc. 


 


Statement of profit and loss:  


 


 Additional disclosures relating to Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR), undisclosed income and 


crypto or virtual currency specified under the head ‘additional information’ in the notes forming 


part of financial statements.  


 


The amendments are extensive and the Company will evaluate the same to give effect to them as 


required by law. 


 


Further on June 18, 2021, the MCA through a notification, issued Companies (Indian Accounting 


Standards) Amendment Rules 2021 which includes amendments in 21 standards. The amendments to Ind 


ASs are in terms of insertion of certain paragraphs, substituting definition of certain terms used in the 


standard along with aligning the bare text of Standards with Conceptual Framework of Financial reporting 


under Ind ASs. The amendments are effective from 18 June 2021. The Company does not expect any 


significant impact of these amendments on its financial statements. 







4. Property, plant and equipment


Particulars Leasehold 


improvements


Plant and 


machinery


Medical equipment Furniture and 


fittings


Computers Office equipment Total


Cost


As at 1 April, 2019 8,984.83                   3,233.99                   19,352.97                 723.19                       934.13                       2,076.19                   35,305.30                 


Additions -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            


Disposals (8,984.83)                  (3,233.99)                  (19,352.97)                (723.19)                     (934.13)                     (2,076.19)                  (35,305.30)                


As at 31 March, 2020 -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            
Additions -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            


Disposals -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            


As at 31 March, 2021 -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            


Accumulated Depreciation


As at 1 April, 2019 8,984.83                   949.19                       6,680.44                   383.04                       885.95                       1,966.68                   19,850.13                 


Charge for the year -                            53.50                         386.98                       15.72                         6.25                           24.39                         486.84                       


Disposals (8,984.83)                  (1,002.69)                  (7,067.42)                  (398.76)                     (892.20)                     (1,991.07)                  (20,336.97)                


As at 31 March 2020 -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            


Charge for the year -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            


Disposals -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            


As at 31 March 2021 -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            


Net 


Carrying value as at 31 March 2020 -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            


Carrying value as at 31 March 2021 -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            


Note (*) - Refer note 32 in relation to sale of the property, plant and equipment.


(Rupees in '000)


FORTIS HEALTH MANAGEMENT (EAST) LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE  FINANCIAL STATEMENTS







5. Intangible Assets - Software


(Rupees in '000)


 Particulars Software Total


Gross carrying amount


As at 1 April 2019 4,562.56                     4,562.56            


Additions -                              -                     


Deletions -                              -                     


As at 31 March 2020 4,562.56                     4,562.56            


Additions -                              -                     


Deletions -                              -                     


As at 31 March 2021 4,562.56                     4,562.56            


Amortisation


As at 1 April 2019 4,562.56                     4,562.56            


Charge for the year -                              -                     


Deletions -                              -                     


As at 31 March 2020 4,562.56                     4,562.56            


Charge for the year -                              -                     


Deletions -                              -                     


As at 31 March 2021 4,562.56                     4,562.56            


Carrying value as at 31 March 2020 -                              -                     


Carrying value as at 31 March 2021 -                              -                     


FORTIS HEALTH MANAGEMENT (EAST) LIMITED
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As at As at


Particulars 31 March 2021 31 March 2020


(Rupees in '000) (Rupees in '000)


6(i) Deferred tax assets


No deferred tax asset has been recognised on
Business losses 63,264.50                 53,957.79                 
Deductible temporary differences 3,639.30                   10,578.66                 
Unabsorbed depreciation 35,367.64                 35,105.94                 


102,271.44               99,642.39                 


Deferred tax asset not recognised on above @ 27.82% (Previous year 34.94%) 28,451.91                  34,819.04                  


In addition to above, no deferred tax asset has been recognised on


Short term capital loss 8,862.69                   8,862.69                   


8,862.69                   8,862.69                   


The following is the analysis of other deductible temporary differences: As at As at


31 March 2021 31 March 2020


(Rupees in '000) (Rupees in '000)


Loss allowance                     3,639.30 3,639.30                   


3,639.30                   3,639.30                   


6(ii) Non - Current tax assets (net)


Non-current tax assets


Advance income tax [net of provision for taxation Rs. Nil (Previous Year Rs. Nil)] 3,095.74                   3,069.08                   


3,095.74                   3,069.08                   


FORTIS HEALTH MANAGEMENT (EAST) LIMITED


NOTES FORMING PART OF THE  FINANCIAL STATEMENTS


Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the following items, as it is not probable that future taxable profit will be available


against which the Company can use such temporary differences and brought forward losses.







As at As at


Particulars 31 March 2021 31 March 2020


(Rupees in '000) (Rupees in '000)


FORTIS HEALTH MANAGEMENT (EAST) LIMITED


NOTES FORMING PART OF THE  FINANCIAL STATEMENTS


7 Trade receivables


Current


(a) Considered Good -                            -                            


(b) Credit impaired 3,639.30                   3,639.30                   


Less: Loss allowance (3,639.30)                  (3,639.30)                  


-                            -                            


Breakup of security details


Trade receivables considered good- secured -                            -                            


Trade receivables considered good- unsecured -                            -                            


Credit impaired- unsecured 3,639.30                   3,639.30                   


Less: Loss allowance (3,639.30)                  (3,639.30)                  


-                            -                            


The movement in expected credit loss during the year is as follows:


As at As at


31 March 2021 31 March 2020


(Rupees in '000) (Rupees in '000)


Balance at the beginning of the year 3,639.30                   3,777.77                   


Creation of the allowance for expected credit loss -                            3,639.30                   


Utilisation of the allowance for expected credit loss (written off) -                            (3,777.77)                  


Balance at the end of the year 3,639.30                   3,639.30                   


8. Cash and cash equivalents


(a) Balances with Banks


  - on current accounts 314.44                      1,685.89                   


Cash and cash equivalents as per balance sheet and statement of cash flows 314.44                      1,685.89                   


Trade receivables are derived from revenue earned from providing healthcare and other ancillary services. No interest is charged on the


outstanding balance, regardless of the age of the balance. In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies Expected Credit Loss (ECL)


model for measurement and recognition of impairment loss towards expected risk of delays and default in collection. The Company has used a


practical expedient by computing the expected credit loss allowance based on a provision matrix. Management makes specific provision in cases


where there are known specific risks of customer default in making the repayments.







As at As at


Particulars 31 March 2021 31 March 2020


(Rupees in '000) (Rupees in '000)


9. Equity share capital


Authorised share capital: 


                     50,000.00                      50,000.00 


Total authorised share capital                      50,000.00                      50,000.00 


Issued, subscribed and fully paid up shares


500.00                                                     500.00 


Total issued, subscribed and fully paid up share capital                            500.00                            500.00 


Notes :


(a) Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year


Equity shares


Number of shares Rupees in '000 Number of shares Rupees in '000


50,000                          500.00                          50,000                          500.00                          


50,000                          500.00                          50,000                          500.00                          


(b) Terms/ rights attached to equity shares


(c) Shares held by the holding/ ultimate holding company and/ or their subsidiaries


Equity Shares


Number of shares Rupees in '000 Number of shares Rupees in '000


50,000                          500.00                          50,000                          500.00                          


(d) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company


Equity Shares


Number of shares % of Holding Number of shares % of Holding 


50,000                          100% 50,000                          100%Fortis Hospitals Limited*, the Holding company


Name of Shareholder 


Name of Shareholder As at March 31, 2020


Outstanding at the end of the year


As at March 31, 2021


As at  31 March 2020


*including 1 equity share each held jointly with Fortis Healthcare Limited, Hiranandani Healthcare Private Limited, SRL Reach Limited, SRL


Diagnostics Private Limited, Escorts Heart Institute and Research Centre Limited and Fortis La Femme Limited.


*including 1 equity share each held jointly with Fortis Healthcare Limited, Hiranandani Healthcare Private Limited, SRL Reach Limited,SRL


Diagnostics Private Limited, Escorts Heart Institute and Research Centre Limited and Fortis La Femme Limited.


At the beginning of the year 


Fortis Hospitals Limited*, the Holding company


The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of Rupees 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share.


Where dividend is proposed by the Board of Directors, it is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting. In the


current and previous year, there has been no dividend proposed by the Board of Directors. In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of


equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the company after distribution of all preferential amount. The distribution will be in


proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.


As at  31 March 2021


FORTIS HEALTH MANAGEMENT (EAST) LIMITED
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50,000 (as at 31 March 2020- 50,000) equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid up


5,000,000 (as at 31 March 2020- 5,000,000 ) equity shares of Rs. 10 each


 31 March  2021Particulars  31 March  2020







As at As at


Particulars 31 March 2021 31 March 2020


(Rupees in '000) (Rupees in '000)


10. Other Equity


Reserves and Surplus


Retained earnings


Opening balance (110,503.12)                 (101,869.89)                  


Loss for the year (8,194.04)                     (8,633.23)                      


Closing balance (118,697.16)                 (110,503.12)                  


11.  Borrowings (unsecured)


Non-current


(a) Loan from holding company* (Refer note 27) -                               95,197.02                      


-                               95,197.02                      


12. Other financial liabilities 


Non-current


(a) Interest accrued on borrowings # -                               10,737.63                      


-                               10,737.63                      


Current


(a) Current maturities of non-current borrowings 105,934.65                  -                                 


(b) Interest accrued on borrowings (Refer note 27) 9,187.71                      -                                 


115,122.36                  -                                 


# Repayable on or before 31 March 2022 as per agreement.


13. Trade Payables


(a) -                               52.72                             


(b) 6,255.14                      8,503.29                        


6,255.14                      8,556.01                        


14. Other current liabilities 


(a) Statutory dues 229.84                         267.43                           


229.84                         267.43                           


Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises


(Refer Note 30)


Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small 


enterprises


FORTIS HEALTH MANAGEMENT (EAST) LIMITED
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*The loan from Holding company carries interest at 8.85% p.a. (previous year 10.50 % p.a.) and is repayable on 31 March 2022 (Previous


year 31 March 2021). Interest accrued as on 31 March 2020 of Rupees 10,737.63 ('000) [Previous year Rupees 11,649.14('000)] has been


converted into loan during the year.







Year ended Year ended


Particulars 31 March 2021 31 March 2020


(Rupees in '000) (Rupees in '000)


15. Revenue from operations


(a) Sale of services


Operating income - In patient department -                            16,211.90                  


Operating income - Out patient department -                            5,812.05                    


Less: Trade discounts -                            463.39                       


-                            21,560.56                  


(b) Sale of products


Sale of medical consumables, drugs and others (refer note 32) -                            792.32                       


-                            792.32                       


(c) Other operating revenues


Commission and rental income -                            125.06                       


Provision / liability no longer required written back 2,089.21                   11,027.75                  


2,089.21                   11,152.81                  


Total revenue from operations (a+b+c) 2,089.21                   33,505.69                  


16. Other income


(a) Interest income


 Interest on income tax refunds -                            350.81                       


-                            350.81                       


Total other income (a) -                            350.81                       


17. Changes in inventories of medical consumables and drugs


(a) Inventory at the beginning of the year -                            836.70                       


(b) Inventory at the end of the year -                            -                             


Changes in inventories [(a)-(b)] -                            836.70                       


18. Employee benefits expense


(a) Salaries, wages and bonus -                            3,526.75                    


(b) Contribution to provident and other funds -                            423.60                       


(c) Staff welfare expenses -                            0.30                           


-                            3,950.65                    


FORTIS HEALTH MANAGEMENT (EAST) LIMITED
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Year ended Year ended


Particulars 31 March 2021 31 March 2020


(Rupees in '000) (Rupees in '000)


19. Finance costs


(a) Interest expense



- on loan 9,375.22               10,957.05                   


(b) Bank charges 2.15                      119.15                         


9,377.37               11,076.20                   


20. Depreciation and amortisation expense


(a) -                        486.84                         


-                        486.84                         


21. Other expenses


(a) Contractual manpower -                        1,708.13                      


(b) Power -                        985.58                         


(c) Housekeeping expenses including consumables -                        214.40                         


(d) Patient food and beverages -                        300.95                         


(e) Pathology laboratory expenses -                        1,605.80                      


(f) Radiology expenses -                        1,560.49                      


(g) Consultation fees to doctors -                        5,224.44                      


(h) Professional charges to doctors -                        2,454.81                      


(i) Repairs and maintenance - -                        


  - Plant and machinery
 -                        274.15                         


  - Others
 -                        54.40                           


(j) Rent (refer note (i) below)


  - Buildings -                        5,310.00                      


  - Others
 219.67                  60.18                           


(k) Legal and professional fee (refer note (ii) below) 531.50                  619.77                         


(l) Travel and conveyance -                        209.62                         


(m) Rates and taxes 1.31                      2.02                             


(n) Printing and stationary -                        198.64                         


(o) Communication expenses -                        147.51                         


(p) Insurance -                        16.71                           


(q) Allowance for doubtful receivables -                        3,639.30                      


(r) Director Sitting Fees 153.40                  -                              


(s) Miscellaneous expenses -                        0.01                             


905.88                  24,586.91                   


Note (i): Amount recognised in statement of profit and loss for leases


Variable lease payments not included in measurement of lease liabilities 219.67                  60.18                           


Expenses related to short term leases -                        5,310.00                      


219.67                  5,370.18                      


Note (ii): Auditor remuneration comprises


 Statutory audit 24.78                    315.00                         


 Tax audit -                        80.00                           


24.78                    395.00                         


FORTIS HEALTH MANAGEMENT (EAST) LIMITED
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Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 







Year ended Year ended


Particulars 31 March 2021 31 March 2020


(Rupees in '000) (Rupees in '000)


FORTIS HEALTH MANAGEMENT (EAST) LIMITED
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22. Tax expense


Current tax


Current income tax charge for the year -                        -                              


Deferred tax


Deferred tax charge/ (credit) for the year -                        -                              


-                        -                              


The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the accounting profit as follows:


Loss before tax from continuing operations (8,194.04)             (8,633.23)                    


Enacted income tax rate in India applicable to the Company 27.82% 34.94%


Income tax credit calculated (2,279.58)             (3,016.80)                    


Effect of tax in relation to DTA not recognised 2,279.58               3,016.80                      


Income tax expense recognised in statement of profit and loss -                        -                              


No deferred tax asset has been recognised on below Business Losses :


Expiry in financial year Gross Amount Tax effect Gross Amount Tax effect


2020-21                         -                     -                   5,411.63                       1,362.00 


2021-22 3,811.48                   1,060.35                 3,811.48                          959.27 


2023-24 10,088.51                 2,806.62              10,088.51                       2,539.08 


2024-25 10,648.02                 2,962.28              10,648.02                       2,679.89 


2025-26 7,473.95                   2,079.25                 7,473.95                       1,881.04 


2026-27 11,664.84                 3,245.16              11,654.83                       2,933.29 


2027-28 11,383.66                 3,166.93                 4,869.39                       1,225.53 


2028-29 8,194.04                   2,279.58                            -                                    -   


Total 63,264.50          17,600.17     53,957.81             13,580.10                   


Unabsorbed depreciation


No expiry 35,367.64                 9,839.28 35,105.94             8,835.46                      


Total 35,367.64          9,839.28       35,105.94             8,835.46                      


Short term Capital Loss


2027-28 8,862.69            1,843.44       8,862.69               1,843.44                      


8,862.69            1,843.44       8,862.69               1,843.44                      


As on 31 March 2021 As on 31 March 2020







23. Leases


(a) Assets taken on Operating Lease (Disclosure under Ind AS 17- Leases):


24. Commitments


(a)


(b)


(c)


25. Financial Instruments


(i) Capital Management


FORTIS HEALTH MANAGEMENT (EAST) LIMITED
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The Company does not have other commitments, for purchases/sales orders which are issued after considering requirements per


operating cycle for purchase/sale of services and employees benefits, in normal course of business. The Company does not have any


long term commitments/contracts including derivative contracts for which there will be any material foreseeable losses.


Estimated amount of contracts (net of advances) remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for amount to Rupees


Nil (As at 31 March, 2020: Rupees Nil).


Till the previous year, hospital premises had been obtained on operating lease. The total lease payments in respect of such leases


recognized in the statement of profit and loss was Rupees 5,310.00 ('000) for the year ended 31 March, 2020. The lease agreement


was valid till June 30, 2019.


The Company manages its capital to ensure that the Company will be able to continue as going concern while maximizing the return to


stakeholders through the optimization of the debt and equity balance.


The capital structure of the Company consists of net debt (borrowings as detailed in note 11 and 12 offset by cash and bank balances) and


total equity of the company.


The Company's Board reviews the, capital structure of the Company on need basis. As part of this review, the Board considers the cost of


capital and the risks associated with each class of capital.


There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.







Gearing ratio


The gearing ratio at end of the reporting period was as follows.


(Rupees in’000)


As at As at


March 31,2021 March 31,2020


           115,122.36              105,934.65 


                  314.44                  1,685.89 


           114,807.92              104,248.76 


         (120,286.37)            (110,003.12)


(95%) (95%)


(ii)  Financial risk management objectives


(iii) Interest rate risk management


The Company is not exposed to interest rate risk as interest rate on loans is reset annually based on the market rate of interest.


(iv) Credit risk management


(v) Liquidity risk management


FORTIS HEALTH MANAGEMENT (EAST) LIMITED


Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the board of directors. The Company does not have significant funding 


requirement currently as the Company does not have any revenue generating activities. Funding requirements of the Company are met 


through borrowings from Holding company. Holding Company has also agreed to provide financial support to the Company as may be 


required in the near future (refer note 33).


NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS


Credit risk refers to the risk that a counter party will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the Company. The 


company takes due care while extending any credit as per the approval matrix approved by Board of Directors.


Refer note 8 of the financial statements for carrying amount and maximum credit risk exposure for cash and cash equivalents. The cash and 


cash equivalent balances are held with reputable banks in India.


*Debt is defined as long-term and short-term borrowings including interest accrued thereon.


The Company’s Corporate Treasury function provides services to the business, co-ordinates access to domestic and international financial 


markets, monitors and manages the financial risks including market risk (including interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.


Net debt


Total equity


Net debt to equity ratio


Particulars


Debt*


Less: Cash and cash equivalents







Liquidity and interest risk tables


(Rupees in’000)
Particulars Within 1 year 1-2 years More than 2 years  Total Carrying amount


As at 31 March 2021
Other financial liabilities(current) 116,122.95      -                                -                          116,122.95      105,934.65          


Trade payables 6,255.14          -                                -                          6,255.14           6,255.14              


Interest due on borrowings- non current 9,187.71          -                                -                          9,187.71           9,187.71              


Total 131,565.80      -                                -                          131,565.80      121,377.50          


(Rupees in’000)


Particulars Within 1 year 1-2 years More than 2 years  Total Carrying amount


As at 31 March 2020
Borrowings -                   117,443.29                   -                          117,443.29      95,197.02            


Trade payables 8,556.01          -                                -                          8,556.01           8,556.01              


Employee payable- current -                   -                                -                          -                   -                       


Interest due on borrowings- non- current -                   10,737.63                     -                          10,737.63        10,737.63            


Total 8,556.01          128,180.92                   -                          136,736.93      114,490.66          


26. Fair value measurement


Financial Assets measured at amortised cost


As at 31 March 2021                         (Rupees in’000)


Fair value 


measurement 


using


Fair value through 


profit and loss 


(FVTPL)


Amortised cost Total Level 3


Financial assets


Cash and cash equivalents (a) -                      314.44               314.44 -


Total -                      314.44               314.44 -


Fair value 


measurement 


using


Fair value through 


profit and loss 


(FVTPL)


Amortised cost Total Level 3


Financial Liabilities


Borrowings (Non current) (b) -               105,934.65        105,934.65 -


Trade Payables (current) (a) -                   6,255.14            6,255.14 -


Other financial liabilites (Non current) (b) -                   9,187.71            9,187.71 -


Total -               121,377.51        121,377.51 -


FORTIS HEALTH MANAGEMENT (EAST) LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS


The tables have been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the company can be


required to pay. 


 Particulars


Carrying value


Note


 Particulars Note


Carrying value







FORTIS HEALTH MANAGEMENT (EAST) LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS


As at 31 March 2020                         (Rupees in’000)


Fair value 


measurement 


using


Fair value through 


profit and loss 


(FVTPL)


Amortised cost Total Level 3


Financial assets


Cash and cash equivalents (a) -                   1,685.89            1,685.89 -


Total -                   1,685.89            1,685.89 -


Fair value 


measurement 


using


Fair value through 


profit and loss 


(FVTPL)


Amortized cost Total Level 3


Financial Liabilities


Borrowings (Non current) (b) -                 95,197.02          95,197.02 -


Trade Payables (Current) (a) -                   8,556.01            8,556.01 -


Other financial liabilites (Non current) (b) -                 10,737.63          10,737.63 -


Other financial liabilites (Current) (a) -                              -                         -   -


Total -               114,490.66        114,490.66 -


The following methods / assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:


(a) Fair valuation of financial assets and liabilities with short term maturities is considered as approximate to respective carrying amount due to the


short term maturities of these instruments


(b) The Company's borrowings have been at fixed rate of interest which are reset annually based on market rate of interest. Accordingly , the


carrying value of such borrowings ( including interest accrued and due ) approximates fair value.


The fair value is determined by using the valuation model/technique with observable/ non-observable inputs and assumptions


There are no transfers between Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3 during the year ended March 31, 2021 and March 31, 2020


Note


Carrying value


 Particulars Note


Carrying value


 Particulars







27. Related party disclosures


(A) Name of the related parties and nature of relationship :


Ultimate Holding Company


Holding Company


(B) Transactions during the year (Rupees in '000)


Year ended


31 March 2021


Year ended


31 March 2020


10,737.63                      11,649.14                      


9,375.22                        10,957.05                      


47.20                             -                                 


23.60                             -                                 


47.20                             -                                 


35.40                             -                                 


105.06                           1,250.04                        


234.26                           162.50                           


46.28                             -                                 


-                                12,316.00                      


-                                20,000.00                      


-                                162.00                           


-                                41.00                             


-                                46.00                             


-                                134.00                           


(C) Balances outstanding as at year end (Rupees in '000)


As at


31 March 2021


As at


31 March 2020


                    105,934.65                       95,197.02 


                        9,187.71                       10,737.63 


1,030.08                        1,264.34                       


4,603.30                        4,637.30                       


-                                105.06                          


2.35                               48.63                            


FORTIS HEALTH MANAGEMENT (EAST) LIMITED


NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS


Fortis Hospitals Limited (FHsL)


IHH Healthcare Berhad (w.e.f. 13 November 2018) 


Northern TK Venture Pte Ltd (w.e.f.  13 November 2018) 


Fortis Healthcare Limited


Integrated Healthcare Holdings Limited (w.e.f.  13 November 2018)


Parkway Pantai Limited (w.e.f.  13 November 2018) 


Fellow Subsidiaries


(with whom transactions have been taken place)


Fortis C-Doc Healthcare Limited (Joint Venture of Fortis Hospitals Limited)


Escorts Heart Institute and Research Centre Limited (Subsidiary of Fortis Healthcare 


Limited)


Intermediate Holding Company


Fortis Hospitals Limited 


Loans repaid


Transfer of employee liability to


Fortis Hospitals Limited


Interest expense on borrowings


Fortis Hospitals Limited 


Fortis Hospitals Limited 


Expenses incurred on behalf of the Company


Fortis C-Doc Healthcare Limited 


Fortis Hospitals Limited 


Escorts Heart Institute and Research Centre Limited 


Expenses incurred by the Company on behalf of 


Mr. Ravi Bhatia(upto October 9, 2020)


Mr. Rajeev Kumar Dua


Transaction Details


Key managerial Person (KMP)


Interest converted into loan


Fortis Hospitals Limited 


Mr. Tituraj Kashyap Das(upto October 13, 2020)


Mr. Ranjan Bihari Pandey


Escorts Heart Institute and Research Centre Limited


Trade Payables


Fortis Hospitals Limited 


Fortis Hospitals Limited 


Fortis Healthcare Limited 


Interest accrued  on borrowings


Borrowing


Particulars


Fortis C-Doc Healthcare Limited


Fortis Healthcare Limited


Fortis C-Doc Healthcare Limited 


Escorts Heart Institute and Research Centre Limited 


Fortis Hospitals Limited 


Director Sitting Fees


Mr. Rajeev Kumar Dua


Mr. Ranjan Bihari Pandey


Mr. Ravi Bhatia


Mr. Tituraj Kashyap Das







28. Earnings per share (EPS)


Rupees in ‘000 (8,194.04)                      (8,633.22)                     


Numbers 50,000 50,000                          


Rupees (163.88)                         (172.66)                        


29. Segment information


(Rupees in '000)


For the year ended 


31 March 2021


For the year ended 


31 March 2020


2,089.21                        33,505.69                     


-                                -                               


2,089.21                        33,505.69                     


(Rupees in '000)


For the year ended 


31 March 2021


For the year ended 


31 March 2020


3,095.74                        3,069.08                       


-                                -                               


3,095.74                        3,069.08                       


30. Details of dues to Micro and Small Enterprises as per MSMED Act, 2006


Details of dues to micro and small enterprises as per MSMED Act, 2006 


(Rupees in '000)


As at


31 March 2021


As at


31 March 2020


-                                52.72                            


-                                -                               


-                                -                               


-                                -                               


-                                -                               


-                                -                               


The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of each


accounting year


India


Outside India


Total


Particulars


The Ministry of Micro and Small Enterprises has issued an office memorandum dated August 26, 2008 which recommends that the micro enterprises and the


small enterprises should mention in their correspondences with their customers the Entrepreneur Memorandum Number as allocated after filing of the


memorandum. Accordingly, the below information regarding dues to Micro and Small Enterprises have been determined to the extent such parties have been


identified on the basis of information available with the Company


FORTIS HEALTH MANAGEMENT (EAST) LIMITED


NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS


The Company is primarily engaged in the business of healthcare services which is the only reportable business segment as per Ind AS 108 "Operating


Segments".


The following table shows the distribution of the Company's revenues by geographical market.


Denomination


Particulars


India


Outside India


Total


The following table shows the carrying amount of non-current assets by geographical area excluding deferred tax and financial instruments in which the assets 


are located:


Earnings per share (EPS)


Loss as per statement of profit and loss


Weighted average number of equity shares in calculating Basic and Diluted EPS


Basic and Diluted EPS


For the year ended 


31 March 2021


For the year ended 


31 March 2020


 - Interest due on above


The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the MSMED Act 2006 along with the


amounts of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting year


The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been paid


but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under the MSMED


Act 2006.


The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year.


The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date


when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of disallowance as a


deductible expenditure under section 23 of the MSMED Act 2006


 - Principal amount due to micro and small enterprises


Particular







31.


(a)


(b)


(c)


Based on investigation carried out by the external legal firm and the additional procedures/enquiries by independent experts, all identified/required


adjustments/provisions/disclosures have been made in the financial statements of the Intermediate Holding Company. The Intermediate Holding


Company has also submitted findings of the Investigation Report of the external legal firm and the additional procedures/ enquiries by independent


experts to the relevant regulatory authorities. Further, on relevant aspects, the Intermediate Holding Company has also filed a complaint with the EOW


against the erstwhile promoters/ erstwhile promoter group companies and EOW is investigating the matter. Recovery /claim proceedings have also been


initiated in the matters where action was recommended by the legal counsels.


Therefore, with this conclusion, the initial investigation, which was subject to the limitations on the information available to the external legal firm and


their qualifications and disclaimers has been addressed through the additional procedures/enquiries by independent experts. In addition, the current


Board of the Intermediate Holding Company had initiated specific improvement projects to strengthen the process and control environment. The projects


included revision of authority levels, both operational and financial and oversight of the Board, review of Financial Reporting processes, assessment of


secretarial documentation w.r.t compliance with regulatory requirements and systems design & control enhancement for which the assessment work was


done and corrective action plans were implemented. 


The Intermediate Holding Company’s Board of Directors initiated additional procedures/ enquiries of certain entities in the Group that were impacted in


respect of the matters investigated by the external legal firm. Pending the additional procedures/enquiries (“Additional Procedures/ Enquiries”) and since


the investigation was subject to the limitations on the information available to the external legal firm and their qualifications and disclaimers as described


in their investigation report, as disclosed in the audited financial statements for the years ended March 31, 2018, March 31, 2019 and March 31, 2020


certain audit qualifications were made in respect of Intermediate Holding Company’s financial statements for those financial years, as the statutory


auditors were unable to comment on the nature of those matters, the provisions established thereof, or any further potential impact on the financial


statements. In order to resolve the same, the Board mandated the management to undertake review of certain areas in relation to historical transactions


for the period April 1 2014 to September 30 2018 involving additional matters by engaging independent experts with specialized forensic skills to assist


with the Additional Procedures/Enquiries and provide inputs and expert advice in connection therewith. The independent experts submitted their report


which was discussed and considered by the Board of Intermediate Holding Company in its meeting held on September 16, 2020. 


The Additional procedures/ enquiries did not reveal any findings related to the Company.


Additional procedures/ enquiries by the reconstituted Board:


FORTIS HEALTH MANAGEMENT (EAST) LIMITED


NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS


As disclosed in the financial statements for the years ended March 31, 2018, March 31, 2019 and March 31, 2020, during the year ended March 31,


2018, there were reports in the media and enquiries from, inter alia, the stock exchanges received by the Intermediate Holding Company about certain


inter- corporate loans given by Holding Company of the Company. The erstwhile Audit and Risk Management Committee of the Intermediate Holding


Company decided to carry out an independent investigation through an external legal firm on this matter. The terms of reference of the investigation,


inter alia, comprised: (i) ICDs amounting to a total of Rupees 49,414 lacs (principal), placed by the Intermediate Holding Company’s wholly-owned


subsidiary, FHsL, with three borrowing companies as on July 1, 2017 ; (ii) the assignment of these ICDs to a third party and the subsequent cancellation


thereof as well as evaluation of legal notice (now a civil suit) received from such third party ; (iii) review of intra-group transactions for the period


commencing FY 2014-15 and ending on December 31, 2017; (iv) investments made in certain overseas funds by the overseas subsidiaries of the


Intermediate Holding Company (i.e. Fortis Asia Healthcare Pte. Ltd, Singapore and Fortis Global Healthcare (Mauritius) Limited) ; (v) certain other


transactions involving acquisition of Fortis Healthstaff Limited (“Fortis Healthstaff”) from an erstwhile promoter group company, and subsequent


repayment of loan by said subsidiary to the erstwhile promoter group company. The investigation report was submitted to the re-constituted Board of


Intermediate Holding Company in June 2018.


The investigation noted certain significant findings in relation to past transactions concerning Intermediate Holding Company and its subsidiaries with


companies whose current and/ or past promoters/ directors were known to/ connected with the erstwhile promoters of the Intermediate Holding


Company. All such identified transactions were provided for by the Intermediate Holding Company in the financial statements for the year ended March


31 2018.


  


The investigation was subject to the limitations on the information available to the external legal firm and their qualifications and disclaimers as


described in their investigation report. It did not cover all related party transactions during the period under investigation. It was observed in internal


correspondence within the Intermediate Holding Company that transactions with certain other entities have been referred to as related party transactions.


However, no further conclusions could be drawn in this regard.


Related party relationships as required under Ind AS 24 – Related Party Disclosures and the Companies Act, 2013 were as identified by the Management


taking into account the findings and limitations in the Investigation Report and the information available with the Management. In this regard, in the


absence of specific declarations from the erstwhile directors on their compliance with disclosures of related parties, especially considering the substance


of the relationship rather than the legal form, the related parties were identified based on the declarations by the erstwhile directors and the information


available through the known shareholding pattern in the entities up to March 31, 2018. Therefore, the possibility could not have been ruled out that there


may have been additional related parties whose relationship may not have been disclosed and, hence, not known to the Management. While such


references could not be fully analyzed during the initial investigation, the nature of these references raised certain concerns.


In order to overcome the above, additional procedures/ enquiries were initiated as below.


Investigation initiated by the erstwhile Audit and Risk Management Committee of Fortis Healthcare Limited (Intermediate Holding Company)







(e)


32.


33.


34.


In terms of our report attached.


For B S R & Co. LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
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Firm Registration Number : 101248W/W-100022


Rajesh Arora Rajeev Kumar Dua Ranjan Bihari Pandey


Partner Director Director


Membership No: 076124 DIN 06974102 DIN 07752372


Place: Gurugram Place: Gurugram Place: Gurugram


Date: 22 September 2021 Date : 22 September 2021 Date : 22 September 2021


Based on management’s analysis, a provision has been made and recognised in the current year by Intermediate Holding Company for any contingency


that may arise from the aforesaid issues. This may not be regarded as admission in any manner whatsoever by the Intermediate Holding Company of any


of the violations, as alleged by any of the authorities or otherwise, against it. Further, as per the management and in consultation with external legal


counsel it is believed that the likelihood of additional impact, if any, is low and is not expected to be material.


Investigation by Various Regulatory Authorities


(a) During the year March 31, 2018, the Registrar of Companies (ROC) under section 206(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, inter alia, had also sought


information in relation to the Intermediate Holding Company. All requisite information in this regard has been duly shared by the Intermediate Holding


Company with the ROC.


(b) During the year March 31, 2018, the Intermediate Holding Company also received a letter from the Serious Fraud Investigation Office (SFIO),


Ministry of Corporate Affairs, under section 217(1)(a) of the Companies Act, 2013, inter alia, initiating an investigation and seeking information in


relation to the Company, its material subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates. The Intermediate Holding Company has submitted all requisite


information in this regard with SFIO as requested from time to time. The outcome of the SFIO investigation, cannot be ascertained as of now keeping in


view the present stage of the investigation.


The Investigation Report of the external legal firm was submitted by the Intermediate Holding Company to the SEBI, and SFIO on June 12, 2018.


Further, the Intermediate Holding Company has submitted a copy of the complaint filed with the EOW and a copy of the report of the additional


procedures/ enquiries done by the independent expert to SEBI and SFIO on November 10, 2020.


Accordingly, the Board of the Intermediate Holding Company has taken necessary actions in consultation with the legal counsels in this regard. The


investigations in so far as these issues involving the erstwhile promoters/ erstwhile promoter group companies is concerned are still pending with the


regulatory authorities. The management of the Intermediate Holding Company and the Company also believes that if any action is initiated by regulatory


authorities against the Intermediate Holding Company or the Company, the same should not have a significant material impact on the Company as all


items which may have financial impact have already been provided for in earlier years. The Company and the Intermediate Holding Company would


fully co-operate with the regulatory authorities in this regard.


FORTIS HEALTH MANAGEMENT (EAST) LIMITED


NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS


The Company is fully co-operating with the regulators in relation to the ongoing investigations to enable them to make their determination on these 


matters. As per the management and in consultation with external legal counsel it is believed that the likelihood of additional impact, if any, is low and is 


not expected to be material.


The Company has incurred a net loss of Rupees 8,194.04 (‘000) during the year ended March 31, 2021. Also, as at 31 March 2021, the net worth of the


Company has been fully eroded. The Company currently does not have any revenue generating activities. These events or conditions raise doubt on the ability


of the Company to continue as a Going Concern. However, the management is evaluating various business options and intends to carry out business activities


through this entity in the foreseeable future. Based on the financial and operational support provided by Fortis Healthcare Limited, its intermediate holding


company, the management has considered it appropriate to prepare the financial statements on a Going Concern basis.


The COVID-19 pandemic was declared as a global pandemic by the World Health Organisation with adverse impact on economy and business. The Company


has used internal and external information in light of these circumstances and has considered the possible effects that may result from COVID-19 on the


carrying amounts of assets as well as the liabilities accrued. The Company has also assessed the impact of this whole situation on its capital and financial


resources, liquidity position and internal financial reporting controls and is of the view that based on its present assessment this situation does not materially


impact these financial statements. However, the actual impact of COVID-19 on these financial results may differ from that estimated due to unforeseen


circumstances and the Company will continue to closely monitor any material changes to future economic conditions.


The Management had not renewed its hospital lease agreement with Aashlok Nursing Home Private Limited, Dr Ashwin Chopra and Dr. Alok Chopra


(hereinafter jointly referred to as "lessor") and ceased its hospital operations w.e.f 1 July 2019. Under the original lease agreement, lessor had the first option to


purchase the entire hospital equipment (Property, plant and equipment) at its depreciated value (carrying value) on the completion of lease period. The lessor


had exercised this option and purchased all assets at their written down value on 30 June 2019 of Rupees 14,935.33 ('000). The lessor had also purchased all


inventories lying in hospital premises at their book value as at 30 June 2019 and refunded security deposit of Rupees 2,598.13 ('000) (initial security deposit of


Rupees 6,000 ('000)) to the Company after adjusting lease rental and electricity charges.
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